
*The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items 
will be heard after 11:00 p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (November 2, 2009) 
G:\Recorder\Agendas\2009 Agendas\Council Agenda 2009-1102.doc Page 1 

Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Please fill out a form identifying the item(s) you wish to speak on 
prior to the meeting starting, if possible, or prior to the agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder.  (The exception 
is formal land use hearings, which requires a specific public hearing process.) 
 

CITY OF NEWBERG 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

NOVEMBER 2, 2009 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 
401 EAST THIRD STREET 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER* 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
V.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 (30 minutes maximum which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion; an opportunity 

to speak for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 
 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Presentation honoring Louis Martinez for his life saving efforts of another citizen. 
 
2. Consider a motion approving City Council Minutes for October 5, 2009.  (Pgs. 3-5)

 
VII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. Consider a motion approving Ordinance No. 2009-2720 amending the Newberg 
Development Code creating and implementing a new M-4 Industrial Zoning 
District and a new II Interim Industrial Overlay Zoning District; and approving 
Resolution No. 2009-2872 accepting the South Industrial Area Master Plan. (Pg. 7-27)

 
2. Consider a motion approving Ordinance No. 2009-2721 amending the 

Transportation System Plan, modifying the cost of Highway 219/2nd Street 
Improvement Project, and modifying the Transportation System Development 
Charge.  (Pgs. 29-34)

 
3. Consider a motion to postpone the Public Hearing for CBS sign appeal to 

December 7, 2009.  (Pg. 35)
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2009-2873 authorizing a water 
service connection to 1409 Sandoz Road for the Newberg Animal Shelter.  (Pgs. 37-38)

 

Page 1



*The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items 
will be heard after 11:00 p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (November 2, 2009) 
G:\Recorder\Agendas\2009 Agendas\Council Agenda 2009-1102.doc Page 2 

IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
   Presentation from Jackie Lang regarding the Riverbend Landfill. 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
INDEX OF ORDERS, ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS: 
 
ORDERS:   
None 
 
ORDINANCES:   
Ordinance No. 2009-2720 amending the Development Code to include text that creates and implements 
a new M-4 industrial zoning district and a new Interim Industrial (II) overlay zoning district, and text 
that amends the M-2 and M-3 zoning districts to provide for the future wastewater treatment plant 
expansion and future animal shelter location. 
Ordinance No. 2009-2721 adding a traffic signal at the ore 219/everest intersection to the transportation 
system plan, modifying the cost of the ore 219/2nd street improvement, and modifying the transportation 
system development charge 
 
 
RESOLUTIONS:   
Resolution No. 2009-2872 accepting the South Industrial Area Master Plan as a vision for the area 
south of Newberg, on either side of Highway 219. 
Resolution No. 2009-2873 authorizing an outside city water service connection to the new animal 
shelter property at 1409 S. Sandoz Road. 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Manager’s office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no 
later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact Norma Alley, City Recorder, at (503) 537-1283. 
 

Page 2



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: November 2, 2009 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Norma Alley, City Recorder    

SUBJECT:    Approve the October 5, 2009, City 
Council Meeting minutes. 

Dept.:  Administration  
File No.:                              
                            (if applicable) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Approve the October 5, 2009, City Council minutes for preservation and permanent retention in the City’s 
official records. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
On October 5, 2009, the City of Newberg City Council held a public meeting.  At that meeting, minutes 
were recorded in text. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
None. 

Page 3



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 5, 2009) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2009-1102\02 Council Minutes 2009-1005.doc Page 1 

CITY OF NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
OCTOBER 5, 2009 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 
401 EAST THIRD STREET 

 
Work Session was held prior to the meeting.  General discussions occurred.  No decisions were made. 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members 
Present: Mayor Bob Andrews  Denise Bacon   Bob Larson   

Stephen McKinney  Bart Rierson   Marc Shelton  
Wade Witherspoon 

Staff 
Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director Les Hallman, Fire Chief   
 Howard Hamilton, Public Works Director Norma Alley, City Recorder  
 Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director Jennifer Nelson, Recording Secretary 
Others 
Present: Louis Larson and Rosa Olivarez 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, City Manager, announced the fire department received a $764,000.00 grant from 
FEMA for improvements to the ventilation in the bunking areas; details will be provided later.  He spoke 
of the League of Oregon Cities (LOC) conference and awards the City will receive.  He also mentioned 
a proposal from the Camellia Society for Newberg to continue to host their annual show. 
 
V.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
Mr. Louis Larson spoke of the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee (CRRC) and congratulated City staff 
for efforts made for public involvement.  He made some suggestions about affordability for the rate 
payer based on capital improvements and distributing costs through a property tax bond measure, so 
those who least can afford it are not being taxed the highest amount. 
 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion approving a Resolution No. 2009-2871 adopting the Yamhill 
County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 
2. Consider a motion approving a proclamation declaring October 8, 2009, Oregon’s 

Day of Culture. 

Page 4



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (October 5, 2009) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2009-1102\02 Council Minutes 2009-1005.doc Page 2 

 
3. Consider a motion approving City Council Minutes for September 8, 2009. 

 
MOTION:  Rierson/Larson to approve the Consent Calendar including Resolution No. 2009-2871, a 
proclamation declaring October 8, 2009, Oregon’s Day of Culture, and the City Council Minutes for 
September 8, 2009 as amended. (7 Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Andrews read the proclamation and presented it to Ms. Rosa Olivarez. 
 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 
VII. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
Discussions occurred concerning citizen surveys as a critical tool for communicating with a constantly 
changing public and the benefits of using a professional company every few years as well as the 
different methods of conducting the surveys, such as telephone and internet venues.  The Council 
discussed having the IT manager also prepare a summary of hits to the City website as one step to 
evaluate how citizens are using the website as a source of information. 
 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:39 PM. 

 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this   day of November, 2009. 

 
 
 

    ____________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this    day of November, 2009. 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  
 

Page 5



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 6



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 1 

 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: November 2, 2009 
Order           Ordinance  XX    Resolution  XX         Motion               Information___ 
No.                  No.  2009-2720     No. 2009-2872 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Ordinance: Jessica Nunley, AICP 

SUBJECT:    Adopt Development Code amendments 
that create and implement a new M-4 industrial 
zoning district and a new Interim Industrial (II) 
overlay zoning district.  Accept the South Industrial 
Area Master Plan as a vision plan for the area south 
of Newberg, on either side of Highway 219.   
 

Dept.: Planning & Building 
 
File No.: G-08-004 
                            (if applicable) 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Adopt Ordinance No. 2009-2720 which amends the Newberg Development Code to include text that 
creates and implements a new M-4 industrial zoning district and a new Interim Industrial (II) overlay 
zoning district.   
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2009-2872 which accepts the South Industrial Area Master Plan as a vision 
plan for the area south of Newberg, on either side of Highway 219.   

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
Newberg City Council created the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future (the Committee) in 2004 to 
provide a forum for citizen involvement in planning for Newberg’s future land use patterns and to make 
recommendations to the City Council for future land use amendments.  The Committee considered 
Newberg’s future land use needs for the 20 year period from 2005 to 2025, and also looked at future land use 
needs out to the year 2040 to give recommendations for possible Urban Reserve Area expansions.  The 
Committee’s full review included considering future population and housing needs, and the land 
requirements for residential, industrial, commercial and industrial development.  Based on long-range 
employment forecasts by the Oregon Employment Department and community goals, the Committee 
determined that Newberg had a long-term need for 4-5 large industrial sites (20+ acres) over the next 20 
years in addition to needing other smaller sized industrial parcels.  The Committee also discussed ways that 
industrial development could and should be provided in our community: 
 

“Industrial development should support reasonable and well-planned growth, and provide a 
complete community where people can live and work. The City should encourage excellence in 
industrial development. To support the City’s economy, the City should: 

• Maintain a supply of appropriately sized and located industrial parcels, including several 
large industrial sites; 
• Preserve existing industrial lands where appropriate; 
• Be aware that the current industrial land supply includes many parcels that are inappropriate 
for industrial development due to proximity to residential neighborhoods, lack of adequate 
access, or impacts from the Newberg-Dundee bypass. 
• Expand the industrial area along Highway 219 south of Wynooski Street and the proposed 
Newberg-Dundee Bypass interchange to accommodate and encourage large site industrial 
development; 
• Create zoning standards that maintain large parcels in the area planned for large-lot 

Page 7



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 2 

industrial uses.” 
 
Analysis by the City’s consultants, staff, and the Committee identified the area south of Newberg, on either 
side of Highway 219, as the area best suited to meet the City’s needs for large site industrial development.  
Accordingly, the area was added to the proposed 2007 Urban Reserve Area.  A main component of future 
planning for large site industrial areas includes having provisions to preserve the large lot capability.  To 
accomplish that, the City started a planning process for a master plan for the area that would define the 
proposed future industrial area and include provisions protecting the future urbanization of the identified 
sites.  

 
The City hired a consultant, WRG Design Inc., to work with staff on a master plan for the proposed South 
Industrial Area.  Staff kicked off the process in late February 2009 with a landowners meeting and opinion 
survey about their visions for the future and preferred timelines for development of their properties.  In the 
following months, staff held a community visioning meeting for the public to get feedback on visions for the 
area and opportunities and constraints to development, and a public open house to get feedback on proposed 
alternatives for the study area.  In addition, staff held three meetings with a Collaborative Design Team to 
analyze the area, discuss possible transportation and utility layouts, and establish several alternative overall 
layouts for the study area.   

 
Staff and the consultant completed the draft South Industrial Area Master Plan at the end of June 2009.  The 
draft contains many positive elements, including: large lot flexibility, a comprehensive transportation 
network that is designed to function well both pre- and post- bypass construction, a park and trail network 
that will tie into future area trails as well as the future CPRD park to be located just south of the study area, 
and a small commercial area designed to serve the needs of the industrial park users.  In addition, the future 
industrial area will incorporate landscape and design standards so that the area is truly a gateway to 
Newberg.    
 
It was also necessary to write new sections for the Development Code in order to implement the standards 
from the South Industrial Area Master Plan.  The new Code sections include text that creates and implements 
a new M-4 industrial zoning district and a new Interim Industrial (II) overlay zoning district.  The M-4 
zoning district would be applied over the majority of the South Industrial study area upon its future inclusion 
in the city limits.  The II overlay zoning district would be used primarily in areas planned for future right-of-
way acquisition (i.e. the Newberg-Dundee bypass projected right-of-way).  The intent of the II overlay 
zoning district is to permit some level of non-structural industrial activity on affected parcels while not 
impeding the future right-of-way acquisition of the planned transportation project.  In addition, the M-2 and 
M-3 industrial zoning districts need updating to accommodate the future animal shelter location and 
wastewater treatment plant expansion. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: There is no direct fiscal impact from adopting the Ordinance and the Resolution.  
However, over time, a net fiscal benefit would be realized as the South Industrial Area Master Plan and the 
accompanying zoning regulations help create a well functioning and attractive industrial area.  Newberg’s 
land needs analysis shows a need for industrial land so that we have enough jobs to support our growing 
population.  Future development of the South Industrial study area will bring jobs to Newberg, increase the 
property tax base with uses that don’t burden public services, and will provide an attractive gateway to south 
Newberg.   
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  The hearings process for the proposed 2007 Urban Reserve Area (URA) is 
still in process (the South Industrial study area is included in the proposed URA).  Because this area is not 
yet included within an approved Urban Reserve Area or Urban Growth Boundary, the draft South Industrial 

Page 8



Area Master Plan cannot be adopted and included in the Comprehensive Plan.  However, the draft plan can 
be accepted as a vision plan for the area and Development Code amendments can be adopted to preserve the 
large lot status and guide development at such time as the land does come into the City’s jurisdiction.   
 
This City currently has a small inventory of available industrial sites, and is severely lacking in large 
available industrial sites.  The Development Code does not currently have any regulations that can 
effectively preserve large industrial sites.  In order to maintain our regional competitiveness, we must be able 
to provide “shovel ready” industrial sites that are large enough and are in the right location.  These 
Development Code amendments preserve large lot sizes and require a planned unit development for any 
subdivisions of land into smaller than 20 acre parcels.  In addition, the Development Code amendments 
contain regulations to ensure that the area is a well-functioning and attractive gateway to Newberg.   
 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 2009-2720 with: 
 Exhibit A: Findings 
Resolution 2009-2872 with: 
 Exhibit A: Draft South Industrial Area Master Plan 
 
Attachments 1-9 may be found on the City of Newberg website at:  
http://www.newbergoregon.gov/citycouncil/event/city-council-business-meeting-3 or by clicking here. 
 
1.  Planning Commission Resolution 2009-270 with: 
 Exhibit A: Proposed Development Code Amendments  
 Exhibit B: Findings  
2.  Planning Commission Staff Report – 10/8/2009 Meeting 
3.  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 10/8/2009 Meeting 
4.  Planning Commission Resolution 2009-268 with: 
 Exhibit A: Draft South Industrial Area Master Plan (by reference) 
5.  Planning Commission Staff Report – 9/10/09 Meeting 
6.  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 9/10/09 Meeting 
7.  Comments from Steve Oulman, dated August 25, 2009 
8.  Comments from Steve Oulman, dated September 3, 2009 
9.  Public Comments 
10.  Newberg Comprehensive Plan (by reference)

 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 3 

Page 9

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/planning/south-industrial-master-plan
http://www.newbergoregon.gov/citycouncil/event/city-council-business-meeting-3
http://www.newbergoregon.gov/citycouncil/event/city-council-business-meeting-3


ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DEVELOPMENT CODE TO INCLUDE 
TEXT THAT CREATES AND IMPLEMENTS A NEW M-4 INDUSTRIAL 
ZONING DISTRICT AND A NEW INTERIM INDUSTRIAL (II) OVERLAY 
ZONING DISTRICT, AND TEXT THAT AMENDS THE M-2 AND M-3 
ZONING DISTRICTS TO PROVIDE FOR THE FUTURE WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION AND FUTURE ANIMAL SHELTER 
LOCATION 

 
RECITALS: 

 
1. Analysis by city staff, consultants, and the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future identified the 

area south of Newberg, on either side of Highway 219, as the area best suited to meet Newberg’s 
future needs for large site industrial development.  Accordingly, staff facilitated a public process over 
a number of months to create a master plan for the area.  Staff completed the draft South Industrial 
Area Master Plan at the end of June 2009.  The Plan includes proposed Development Code 
amendments to create standards for a large lot M-4 industrial zoning district that will help implement 
the Ad Hoc Committee’s vision and the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

2. A portion of the area in and around the South Industrial study area is located within the projected 
Newberg-Dundee Bypass corridor.  Within these areas, it is important to permit some level of 
industrial activity in keeping with the base zoning; however, it is also important not to impede the 
future right-of-way acquisition for the project.  Therefore, staff created an Interim Industrial overlay 
zoning district (II) to be applied to properties impacted by the projected Newberg-Dundee Bypass 
right-of-way corridor.  This overlay may also be applied to other industrially zoned properties that 
will be impacted by planned transportation improvements.   
 

3. The City has recently approved the purchase of a property on which to locate the future animal 
shelter and the future wastewater treatment plant expansion.  The property would be zoned with an 
industrial designation upon annexation into the city; however, the Development Code does not 
currently permit animal shelters or wastewater treatment plants in its industrial districts.  In order to 
remedy this and proceed with these projects, the M-2 and M-3 industrial zoning districts must be 
amended to permit these uses.   

 
4. The Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on October 8, 2009 to consider the request.  At 

that meeting, the Planning Commission passed Resolution 2009-270, recommending that the City 
Council amend the Development Code to include standards for a new M-4 industrial zoning district 
and standards for a new Interim Industrial (II) overlay zoning district. 

 
5. After proper notice, the City Council held a hearing on November 2, 2009 to consider the request.  

The Council finds that the proposal meets the applicable Comprehensive Plan criteria. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The Development Code shall be amended as follows.  Each section that needs to be modified is 

identified below.  Text that is proposed to be deleted is shown as strikethrough and text that is 

 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 1 

Page 10



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 2 

proposed to be included is underlined. 
 
SECTION 1 – The following definitions should be added to § 151.003 DEFINITIONS 
 
Adjoin.  To be contiguous to a property boundary at a property line or property corner, or contiguous to a 
property line or corner as extended across an abutting right-of-way for an alley , street, or public walkway. 
 
Basic Utilities.  Utilities that serve the needs of land uses in the immediate vicinity including sewer and 
water lines, sewer or water pump stations, water reservoirs, storm drains, storm water retention or detention 
facilities, electric service substations, natural gas transmission lines, electric, telephone, and cable lines, and 
solar panels. 
 
Heavy Manufacturing. A use that involves manufacturing, processing, fabrication, packaging, or assembly 
of large volumes of raw materials into refined products. These types of firms have significant external 
impacts.  Outdoor storage and processing of goods and materials may exceed 10% of the site. Transportation 
needs are often met by both truck and rail.  Goods are generally not displayed or sold on site, but if so, they 
are a subordinate part of sales. Relatively few customers come to the manufacturing site (typically fewer than 
5 per day per 1,000 sq ft floor area). 
 
Industrial Service.  A use that involves repairing or servicing of industrial, business or consumer 
machinery, equipment, products or by-products.  Few customers, especially the general public, come to the 
site (typically fewer than 5 per day per 1,000 sq ft floor area).  Examples include welding shops; machine 
shops; towing and vehicle storage; auto and truck salvage and wrecking; heavy truck servicing and repair; 
building contractors; printing; exterminators; recycling operations; janitorial and building maintenance 
services; research and development laboratories; and photofinishing laboratories.  This does not include truck 
stops. 
 
Light Manufacturing. A use that involves manufacturing, processing, fabrication, packaging, or assembly 
of goods. These types of firms are involved in the secondary processing and assembly of materials and 
components into finished products, generally for the wholesale market, for transfer to other plants, or to 
order for firms or consumers.  The external impact from these uses is generally less than Heavy 
Manufacturing. Outdoor storage and processing of goods and materials is less than 10% of the site.  
Transportation needs are often met by truck.  Goods are generally not displayed or sold on site, but if so, they 
are a subordinate part of sales. Relatively few customers come to the manufacturing site (typically fewer than 
5 per day per 1,000 sq ft floor area). 
  
Self-Service Storage. A structure that provides separate storage areas for individual or business uses. The 
storage areas are designed to allow private access by the tenant for storing or removing personal property. 
 
Vehicle Repair. Firms servicing passenger vehicles, light and medium trucks and other consumer motor 
vehicles such as motorcycles, boats and recreational vehicles. Generally, the customer does not wait at the 
site while the service or repair is being performed.  Examples include transmission or muffler shop, auto 
body shop, alignment shop, auto upholstery shop, auto detailing, and tire sales and mounting. Vehicle 
towing, storage, wrecking and salvage are classified as Industrial Service.  This does not include truck stops. 
 
Warehouse and Distribution.  A use that involves storage or movement of goods for themselves or other 
firms.  Goods are generally delivered to other firms or the final consumer, except for some will-call pickups. 
 There is little on-site sales activity with the customer present.  Examples include separate warehouses used 
by retail stores such as furniture and appliance stores; household moving and general freight storage; 
trucking and bus yards; and wholesale distribution centers and cold storage for food or agricultural products. 

Page 11



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 3 

 
Waste-Related. A use that is characterized by receiving solid or liquid wastes from others for disposal on 
the site or for transfer to another location, including uses that collect sanitary wastes, or uses that 
manufacture or produce goods or energy from the biological decomposition of organic material.  Waste-
Related uses also include uses that receive hazardous wastes from others and are subject to the regulations of 
OAR 340-100-110, Hazardous Waste Management.  Examples include sanitary landfills, recycling facilities, 
limited use landfills, waste composting, energy recovery plants, sewer treatment plants, portable sanitary 
collection equipment storage and pumping, and hazardous-waste-collection sites. 
 
Wholesale Sales.  A use that involves selling, leasing, or renting products intended for industrial, 
institutional, or commercial businesses. The uses emphasize on-site sales or order taking and often include 
display areas. Businesses may not be open to the general public. Products may be picked up on site or 
delivered to the customer.  Examples include sale or rental of machinery, equipment, heavy trucks, building 
materials, special trade tools, welding supplies, machine parts, electrical supplies, janitorial supplies, 
restaurant equipment, and store fixtures; mail order houses; and wholesalers of food, clothing, auto parts, 
building hardware, and office supplies. 
 
Wineries, Breweries, Distilleries. Manufacturing, processing, and packaging of alcoholic and non-alcoholic 
beverages. The external impact from these uses is typically limited to outdoor storage of materials.  These 
uses include a warehouse and distribution element, with goods being shipped out to retail markets.  There 
also may be a retail element to these uses with goods being sold and/or consumed on-site.  
 
SECTION 2 – Add the following new section to the Development Code: 
 
§ 151.198 ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE M-4 ZONING 
DISTRICT. 

 
The purpose of this section is to ensure that new development and redevelopment in the M-4 Zoning 

Districts is consistent with the City’s urban design goals and policies while emphasizing the creation of an 
attractive gateway to Newberg and encouraging industrial development.  Special development standards 
relating to setbacks, screening, and architecture review are required for development within this District. 

   
An applicant for a new development or redevelopment within the City’s M-4 district that is subject to 

the Site Design Review process must demonstrate that the following site and building design elements have 
been incorporated into the design of the project.  Exceptions to these additional development requirements 
may be granted if equivalent protections are in place, or if there are substantial difficulties in complying with 
these standards. 

(A)  Street Standards.  Streets, alleys and private accessways shall be constructed consistent with the 
standards of the City of Newberg Green Design Handbook. Deviations from the standards can be approved 
via a Type III process. 

(B) Development abutting Highway 219, Arterials and Collectors.  Where development abuts Highway 
219 or a public street classified as an Arterial or Collector the applicant shall provide a landscape buffer to 
provide an attractive and inviting entrance to Newberg and to mitigate the visual, light and noise impacts of 
the use.  The property owner of each proposed development is responsible for the installation and 
maintenance of required landscape buffers.  The review body may waive and/or alter the buffering 
requirements where alternative standards are proposed that provide for an appropriate buffer consistent with 
the intent of these provisions.   

 (1)  Landscape buffer strips facing Highway 219.  Yards along the Highway 219 right-of-way shall 
be landscaped and maintained. The area beneath the trees shall be planted with a living ground-cover or 
shrubs giving 50% coverage at planting and 100% coverage within 3 years.  Minimum landscape 

Page 12



requirements per 100 lineal feet of Highway frontage or any portion thereof, shall be consistent with Figure 1 
as shown below: 

  
Figure 1: Highway 219 Landscaping Standards  
 
   “Plan View”              “Street View”

20’ 

Property Line 

Property Line 

 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 4 

Page 13



Table 1: Approved landscape species for right-of-way landscape buffer strips 

  
 
(2)  Buffer strips facing a Collector or Arterial.  Buffer strips with rear and side yards facing a 

collector or arterial street require minimum planting of at least one row of trees, not less than eight feet high 
and one and one-half inches in caliper for deciduous trees and five feet high for evergreen trees at the time of 
planting, and spaced not more than 15 feet apart.  The area beneath the trees shall be planted with a living 
ground-cover or shrubs giving 50% coverage at planting and 100% coverage within 3 years. Plant material 
used for buffering shall be selected from Table 1 above.  

(C)  Site Design and Orientation.  The intent of these standards is to establish requirements that foster 
the development of an attractive employment area within the community. The applicant shall design all new 
buildings and substantial additions consistent with the applicable standards identified below. The review 
body may waive and/or alter these requirements where alternative standards are proposed that provide for a 
design approach consistent with the intent of these provisions.  

 (1) Architectural variation and segmentation shall be provided for any wall facing, and within 100 
feet of, a collector or arterial street.  The variation and segmentation of the facing walls shall provide features 
that visually break up the building mass.  All facing walls must include at least two (2) of the following 
features along each 100 foot segment of the building wall; each feature must comprise at least 10% of each 
wall segment. 

(a)  Contrasting building colors 
(b)  Contrasting wall textures 
(c)  Change in building materials.   
(d)  Building offset of at least a four (4) foot change in depth and width  
(e)  Architectural features 

 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 5 

Page 14



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 6 

i.  Awnings, to be placed along 20% of the length of each wall segment 
ii.  Columns 
iii. Windows 
iv.  Arches 
v.  Decorative relief, or sunken relief, at least 1 inch in depth 
vi.  Pitched roof 
vii. Other, as approved by the reviewing body 

 (2) All buildings must be constructed using building materials that will provide an attractive façade 
for all walls that face a collector or arterial street.  Acceptable building materials include the following: 

(a)  Brick or masonry 
(b)  Concrete or concrete block 
(c)  Wood, or wood composite, applied as horizontal siding 
(d)  Metal, provided the metal does not comprise more than 70% of the façade and does 
not extend more than 100 feet in horizontal length along any facing wall 
(e)  Stucco 
(f)  Other materials, as approved by the reviewing body 

 (3) Required front yard setbacks and parking areas must be landscaped and maintained.  Front yard 
setbacks adjacent to a collector or arterial street must be landscaped in accordance with Table 1 
(§151.198(b)(1)).  Parking areas must be landscaped in accordance with the Green Design Handbook.   

 (4) Architectural designs shall include parapets or other treatments to be constructed to be 
constructed to conceal flat roofs and rooftop equipment from public view.   

 (5) All exterior lights shall be designed consistent with “dark sky” principles.  Lighting shall be 
located, installed and directed in such a manner and contained within the target area so that no direct light 
source is visible from any street.  All parking area lighting, building security lighting, and externally 
illuminated signs, displays, building and aesthetic lighting shall be full cut-off type fixtures.   

 (6) Areas used for storage, truck, trailer and van parking, trash collection or compaction, loading and 
unloading of delivery trucks and similar uses shall be provided with a sight-obscuring screen from all street 
views.  Materials, colors and design of approved screening walls, decorative fences and their covers shall be 
complementary to those of the primary structure.  

 (D)  Sustainable Design.  Buildings should seek to reduce waste, pollution, energy use, and water 
consumption. The applicant can either obtain Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) 
designation for the building, or demonstrate that the building design could attain LEED designation to the 
satisfaction of the reviewing authority, or demonstrate compliance with five (5) of the following design 
guidelines. Minor Alterations to existing development, as determined by the reviewing authority will 
demonstrate compliance with a minimum of three (3) design guidelines. 

 (1)  Native Landscaping: Landscaping designs should seek to conserve water consumption through 
the use of native plant materials. A minimum of 80% of the plant material on site shall be native to the 
Willamette Valley. 

 (2)  Rain Water Harvesting: Utilize cisterns and/or other techniques to harvest rainwater for use on 
site including but not limited to irrigation and grey water applications. 

 (3)  Alternative Energy: Install solar panels, wind harvesting equipment or other devices that offset 
energy consumption of the development by at least 25%.  

 (4)  Recycled Water: Incorporate recycled water for on-site irrigation or other uses. 
 (5) Fixtures: New buildings should seek to conserve energy and water through the use of water 

efficient fixtures including toilets, sinks, showers and similar facilities. 
 (6) Local Materials: Demonstrate that a minimum of seventy-five percent (75%) of the value of the 

building materials and landscape materials were purchased within 100 miles of Newberg. 
 (7)  Composting: Require existing landscaping materials and/or organic waste from the site to be 

composted or reused within the site for landscaping or other purposes. Compost can also be collected at a 
central facility or by the local waste hauler. 

Page 15



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 7 

 (8)  Low Impact Design: Utilize Low Impact Design techniques to detain and treat stormwater 
generated from impervious areas on site. Post development flows should mimic predevelopment conditions. 

 (9) Solar Orientation / Daylighting: Demonstrate how the building or site design takes advantage of 
sun to light and/or heat new buildings or work areas.    

 (E)  Building openings.  Major building openings, such as drive-in bays and partially enclosed work 
areas, shall be oriented away from collector and arterial streets. 
 
SECTION 3 – Add the following new section to the Development Code: 
 

Part 11.  M-4 LARGE LOT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 
 
§ 151.418 DESCRIPTION AND PURPOSE  

The M-4 Industrial Employment District is divided into two (2) sub-districts: the Industrial Employment 
Sub-district and the Industrial Commercial Sub-district. One of the main intents of these districts is to 
provide a variety of employment opportunities for the citizens of Newberg.  Providing adequate jobs for our 
citizens leads to other related benefits, including a diversified and stable local economy, a stronger tax base, 
and environmental benefits from less out-commuting to jobs.  In addition, providing adequate local jobs 
helps fulfill the stated desire of many citizens to “live here, work here, shop here”.  

 
 Through a comprehensive planning process, the City identified a need for large lot industrial sites of at 
least 20 acres in size.  Further analysis of potential areas identified the area south of Newberg, on either side 
of Highway 219, as the area best suited to meet the City’s needs for large site industrial development.  As 
part of the City’s strategy for preserving large size industrial sites within industrial districts, the M-4 
Industrial Employment Sub-district is intended to create, preserve and enhance areas containing large parcels 
(20+ acres) suitable for large industrial users and industrial planned unit developments. An approved plan for 
an industrial planned unit development is required prior to dividing a large parcel into lots or parcels that are 
less than 20 acres. The purpose of the planned unit development is to bring related industries and services 
that complement each other close together, resulting in synergistic effects arising from regular face-to-face 
communications, economies of scale, and reduced transportation time and cost. 

 
The Industrial Commercial Sub-district is intended to create, preserve and enhance areas for retail 

establishments serving the specific needs of the M-4 Industrial Employment Area. The Sub-district is similar 
to the C-1 Neighborhood Commercial District, although the type and scale of uses permitted are limited to 
those that will directly support allowed uses within the M-4 Industrial Employment Area. The area is not 
intended to serve pass-by traffic or provide for the general commercial needs of the community. The intent is 
to allow uses that complement the area while limiting or eliminating those uses that would have detrimental 
impact on the overall District.  

 
Permitted and Conditional Uses are those identified below.  Potential adverse impacts of industrial 

activity on adjacent uses are minimized by design and development standards as required by §157.198.  
Large industrial sites and planned unit developments are configured and designed to minimize use-to-use 
conflicts within the industrial districts, as well as conflicts between industrial uses and those allowed in other 
districts. 

 
The M-4 District is intended to be consistent with the Industrial (IND) and Commercial (COM) 

designations of the comprehensive plan. 
 
§ 151.419 PERMITTED BUILDINGS AND USES  

Page 16



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 8 

In the M-4 Industrial Employment District, the following buildings and uses are permitted as hereinafter 
specifically provided, subject to the general provisions and exceptions set forth in this code. 

 
Industrial Employment Sub-District: 
(A) Accessory buildings and uses normal and incidental to the buildings and uses permitted in this 

section and §151.419. 
(B) Agriculture. 
(C) Basic Utilities. 
(D) Industrial Service. 
(E) Light Manufacturing. 
(F) Offices.  
(G) Planned unit developments. 
(H) Parking areas and garages. 
(I) Retail sales of goods manufactured on-site, which may be sold to the general public provided the 

floor area dedicated to sales and display areas is less than 25% of the gross square feet of the total use. In no 
case shall any retail sales floor exceed 5,000 gsf.  

(J)  Self-service storage. 
(K) Telecommunication facility, including radio towers and transmitters, which are 100 feet or less in 

height. 
(L) Transit Centers. 
(M) Transportation facilities and improvements. 
(N) Warehouse and Distribution. 
(O) Wholesale Sales. 
(P) Wineries, breweries and distilleries, provided that the floor area dedicated to retail sales, displays, 

tasting, or similar customer related activities is less than 25% of the gross square feet of the total use.  In no 
case shall any customer related space or retail floor area exceed 5,000 gsf.  

(Q) Any other building or uses determined to be similar to those listed in this section.  Such other uses 
shall not have any different or more detrimental effect upon the adjoining neighborhood area than the 
buildings and uses specifically listed in this section. 

 
Industrial Commercial Sub-District: 
(A)    Accessory buildings and uses normal and incidental to the buildings and uses permitted in this 

section and § 151.419. 
(B)   Ambulance service. 
(C)   Athletic facilities. 
(D) Bakeries, retail & wholesale. 
(E)   Banks. 
(F)   Barber and beauty shops. 
(G) Bars, Taverns, pool or billiard halls, or night clubs, (Dispenser Class “A”). 
(H) Basic Utilities 
(I) Bicycle shops. 
(J) Blueprinter, copy shops. 
(K) Book stores, less than 5,000 gsf. 
(L) Delicatessen stores. 
(M) Florist shops. 
(N)   Day nurseries. 
(O)  Dry cleaners, tailor shops. 
(P)   Florist shops. 
(Q) Card lock fueling stations. 
(R) Gift shops. 

Page 17



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 9 

(S)   Grocery stores or markets, less than 7,500 gsf. 
(T) Hardware store, less than 7,500. 
(U) Health studios. 
(V) Locksmith shops. 
(W) Mini mart, less than 5,000 gsf. 
(X) Office supplies and equipment stores less than 5,000 gsf. 
(Y)  Open space. 
(Z) Parking areas and parking garages. 
(aa)   Pharmacy or drug stores less than 5,000 gsf. 
(bb)  Planned unit developments. 
(cc)   Post offices. 
(dd) Printing Shops. 
(ee)  Public and semi-public buildings essential to the physical and economic welfare of an area such as 

fire stations, substations and pump stations. Interior yards for these uses shall be a minimum of 25 feet in 
width. No stockpiling or storage of materials shall be allowed. 

(ff) Restaurants, (no drive-through). 
(gg) Shoe repair shops. 
(hh) Telecommunication facility, including radio towers and transmitters which are incorporated into an 

existing structure or an existing utility pole, and which will not extend above the existing structure more than 
18 feet. 

(ii) Transit facilities. 
(jj) Transportation facilities and improvements. 
(kk) Any other building or uses determined to be similar to those listed in this section. Such other uses 

shall not have any different or more detrimental effect upon the adjoining neighborhood area than the 
buildings and uses specifically listed in this section. 
 
§ 151.420 BUILDINGS AND USES PERMITTED CONDITIONALLY. 

In addition to the buildings and uses permitted conditionally, listed in § 151.419, the Planning 
Commission may grant a conditional use permit for any of the following buildings and uses in accordance 
with a Type III procedure. 

Industrial Employment Sub-district: 
(A)  Day nursery. 
(B) Dwelling unit, limited to one, for a caretaker or superintendent employed by the property owner or 

operator, whenever the use requires the on-site residence of such person.  
(C)  Retail sales of goods manufactured on-site, which may be sold to the general public provided the 

floor area dedicated to sales and display areas is less than 10,000 square feet.  Retail sales and display areas 
greater than 10,000 square feet are prohibited. 

(D) Telecommunication facilities including radio towers and transmitters, which are more than 100 feet 
in height or which are less than 2,000 feet apart. 

(E)  Waste-Related uses. 
(F)  Heavy Manufacturing. 
(G)  Any other building or uses determined to be similar to those listed in this section.  Such other uses 

shall not have any different or more detrimental effect upon the adjoining neighborhood area than the 
buildings and uses specifically listed in this section. 
 

Industrial Commercial Sub-district: 
(A)   Telecommunication facility, including radio towers and transmitters which are either freestanding 

or which are incorporated into an existing structure or an existing utility pole, and will extend above the 
existing structure more than 18 feet. 

Page 18



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 10 

(B)  Any other building or uses determined to be compatible with those listed in this section. Such other 
uses shall not have any different or more detrimental effect upon the adjoin area than the buildings and uses 
specifically listed in this section. 
 
§ 151.421 SITE DESIGN REVIEW REQUIRED 
 Site design review shall be required prior to issuance of building permits or commencement of work for 
all improvements within the M-4 Industrial Employment District.  Site design review permits shall be 
processed pursuant to § 151.191 and include those additional standards and criteria set forth in § 151.198. 
 
SECTION 4 – Amend the Planned Development regulations to add § 151.226(G)(4) as follows: 
 
 (4) M-4 Zone:  Uses and buildings as permitted outright or conditionally in the use district wherein 
the development will be located.  Proposed sites, structures and uses must work together to support a 
common theme, product or industry.  Applicants for an industrial Planned Development in M-4 must 
demonstrate conformance with any adopted Master Plan for the subject area and provide a plan 
describing how the proposed structures and uses will work together to support a common theme, product 
or industry.  Prior to subdivision, covenants must limit occupancy to the types of industrial and related 
uses identified in the development plan. 
 
SECTION 5 – Add the following new section to the Development Code: 
 
PART 21. INTERIM INDUSTRIAL (II) OVERLAY 
 
151.532 PURPOSE. 

The purpose of the Interim Industrial (II) Overlay is to allow interim use of industrially zoned 
properties in areas that are planned for future acquisition for right-of-ways, such as the Newberg-Dundee 
bypass.  The II Overlay allows non-structural uses of the land, such as parking and storage.  The II 
Overlay also reduces requirements for permanent site improvements, such as paving and landscaping, 
that would be removed upon acquisition of the right-of-way. 

151.532.1 AREA OF APPLICATION OF INTERIM INDUSTRIAL OVERLAY. 
 The interim industrial use overlay may be applied on a parcel by parcel basis through the zone change 
process.  Properties generally must be in a manufacturing zone in order to have this Interim Industrial 
Overlay.  The overlay may be applied to properties in other zoning districts where the review body 
determines the interim uses would be compatible with uses on surrounding properties. 
 
151.532.2 PERMITTED USES. 
All uses of land and water that are permitted in the underlying zoning district(s) are also permitted in the 
Interim Industrial Overlay, with the exception of those uses listed in 151.532.4.  In addition, the 
following are permitted. 

 (1) Contractor’s equipment or storage. 
 (2) Construction material storage. 

151.532.3 CONDITIONAL USES. 
(A)    Use of land and water that are listed as conditional uses in the underlying zoning district(s) may 

also be allowed in the Interim Industrial Overlay, with the exception of uses included in the list of 
prohibited uses in § 151.532.4. 

(B)    Proposed conditional uses in the Interim Industrial Overlay are subject to the standard 
conditional use criteria and procedures of this code. 

 

Page 19



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 11 

151.532.4 PROHIBITED USES. 
The following uses are prohibited in the Interim Industrial Overlay:  

(A) Cemeteries 
(B) Garbage dumps, sanitary landfills 
(C) Parks 
(D) Permanent buildings. 
(E) Wrecking yards for motor vehicles, building materials, and other similar items. 

 
151.532.5  ALTERNATIVE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS. 
Parking and landscaping design shall either be done in accordance with §151.610-617 and 151.580 or by 
using the following standards: 
 
 (1) Parking and maneuvering areas need not be paved, with the exception of areas within 50 
feet driving distance of the drive approach. 
 (2) The site shall be landscaped according to the following standards: 
  (a) A six-foot height solid wood or masonry fence or wall shall be installed around 
the perimeter of the site and be located a minimum of five feet from the right-of-way. 
  (b) A hedge shall be planted between the right-of-way and the fence or wall.  The 
hedge shall be planted to reach a minimum height of five feet and continuous horizontal coverage upon 
maturity. 
 
SECTION 6 – Amend Development Code § 151.416, Permitted Buildings and Uses in the M-3 Zone, to 
include the following under subsection (E):  Other buildings and uses: 
 
 (6) Sewage treatment plants 
 (7) Pound (dog or cat), kennel. 
 
SECTION 7 – Amend Development Code § 151.401 (B), Permitted Buildings and Uses in the M-2 Zone, to 
include the following as use (31), with remaining uses being renumbered accordingly: 
 
 (31) Pound (dog or cat), kennel. 
 
SECTION 8 – Amend Development Code § 151.120, ESTABLISHMENT AND DESIGNATION OF USE 
DISTRICTS AND SUB DISTRICTS, as follows: 
 
151.120 ESTABLISHMENT AND DESIGNATION OF USE DISTRICTS AND SUB DISTRICTS. 
In order to classify, regulate, restrict and segregate the uses of lands and buildings, to regulate and 
restrict the height and size of buildings, to regulate the area of yards and other open spaces about 
buildings, and to regulate the density of population, the following classes of use districts and sub-
districts are established: 
 
(A)    Use districts. 
 (1)    R-1 Low Density Residential District. 
 (2)    R-2 Medium Density Residential District. 
 (3)    R-3 High Density Residential District. 
 (4)    RP Residential Professional District. 
 (5)    C-1 Neighborhood Commercial District. 
 (6)    C-2 Community Commercial District. 
 (7)    C-3 Central Business District. 
 (8)    C-4 Riverfront District.  

Page 20



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 12 

 (9)    CF Community Facilities District. 
 (10)    I Institutional District. 
 (11)    M-1 Limited Industrial District. 
 (12)    M-2 Light Industrial District. 
 (13)    M-3 Heavy Industrial District. 
 (14)    M-4 Large Lot Industrial District. 
 (15)    AI Airport Industrial District. 
 (16)    Airport Residential (AR) District. 
 (1417)    SD Springbrook District. 
(B)    Sub-districts of use districts. 
 (1)    AO Airport Overlay Sub-district. 
 (2)    CC Civic Corridor Overlay Sub-district. 
 (3)    H Historic Landmarks Sub-district. 
 (4)    IO Institutional Overlay Sub-district. 
 (5)    LU Limited Use Overlay Sub-district. 
 (6)    RF Riverfront Sub-district. 
 (7)    SC Stream Corridor Overlay Sub-district. 
 (8)    SP Specific Plan Sub-district. 
 (9)   AIO Airport Industrial Overlay Sub-district. 
 (10)   Airport Residential Overlay Sub-district. 
 (11)    Bypass Interchange Overlay Sub-district. 
 (12)    Interim Industrial Overlay Sub-district. 
 
SECTION 9 – Amend Development Code § 151.267, COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ZONING 
DESIGNATIONS subdivision (B) as follows: 
 
(B)    Upon annexation, the area annexed shall be automatically zoned to the corresponding land use 
zoning classification which implements the Newberg comprehensive plan map designation. The 
corresponding designations are shown in the table below. The procedures and criteria of § 151.122 shall 
not be required. 

Comprehensive Plan 
Classification 

Appropriate Zoning Classification 

OS Any zoning classification 

LDR R-1 

MDR R-2 

HDR R-3 

COM C-1, C-2, or C-3 as determined by the Director 

MIX C-2, M-1, or M-2 as determined by the Director 

IND M-1, M-2, or M-3, M-4, or AI 

PQ Any zoning classification 

P/PP Any zoning classification 
 

Page 21



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 13 

SECTION 10 – Amend Development Code § 151.536, BUILDING HEIGHT LIMITATION, subdivision 
(B)(2) as follows: 
 
(2)    In the AI, C-2, C-3, M-1, M-2, and M-3, and M-4 Districts there is no building height limitation, 
except when said districts abut upon a residential district, the maximum permitted building height shall 
not exceed the maximum building height permitted in the abutting residential district for a distance of 50 
feet from the abutting boundary. 
 
SECTION 11 – Amend Development Code § 151.538, PUBLIC ACCESS REQUIRED, as follows: 
 
151.538 PUBLIC ACCESS REQUIRED. 
No building or structure shall be erected or altered except on a lot fronting or abutting on a public street 
or having access to a public street over a private street or easement of record approved in accordance 
with provisions contained in this code. New private streets may not be created to provide access except 
as allowed under § 151.449.2(B)(8) and § 151.448.1(B)(24), and in the M-4 Zone. Existing private 
streets may not be used for access for new dwelling units, except as allowed under § 151.567. No 
building or structure shall be erected or altered without provisions for access roadways as required in the 
Uniform Fire Code, as adopted by the city. 
 
SECTION 12 – Amend Development Code § 151.551,FRONT YARD SETBACK, subdivision (C) as follows: 
 
(C)    Industrial. All lots or development sites in the M-1, M-2 or M-3 Districts shall have a front yard of 
20 feet. Lots or development sites in the AI District shall have a front yard of 10 feet.  Lots or 
development sites in the M-4 District shall have a front yard of 20 feet where abutting Highway 219, 
Arterials, and Collectors, and a front yard of 10 feet along other streets. 
 
SECTION 13 – Amend Development Code § 151.552, INTERIOR YARD SETBACK, subdivision (C) as 
follows: 
 (C)    Industrial. All lots or development sites in the AI, M-1, M-2, and M-3, and M-4 Districts shall 
have no interior yards where said lots or development sites abut property lines of commercially or 
industrially zoned property. When interior lot lines of said districts are common with property zoned 
residentially, interior yards of not less than ten feet shall be required opposite the residential districts. 
 
SECTION 14 – Amend Development Code § 151.565 LOT AREA; LOT AREAS PER DWELLING UNIT, 
by adding the following as subdivision (A)(4), and renumbering remaining items as follows: 
 
 (4)    In the M-4 District, all lots or development sites shall have a minimum area of 20 acres, or as 
established through the planned unit development process. 
 
SECTION 15 - Amend Development Code § 151.567 LOT DIMENSIONS AND FRONTAGE, subdivision 
(D), as follows: 
 
(D)    Frontage. 
 (1)    No lot or development site shall have less than the following lot frontage standards: 
  (a)    Each lot or development site shall have either frontage on a public street for a 
distance of at least 25 feet or have access to a public street through an easement that is at least 25 feet 
wide. No new private streets, as defined in § 151.003, shall be created to provide frontage or access, 
except in the AI, AR, or M-4 Zones. 
  (b)    Each lot in an R-1, R-2, R-3, AI, or RP Zone shall have a minimum width of 50 feet 
at the front building line. 

Page 22



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 14 

  (c)    Each lot in an AR Zone shall have a minimum width of 45 feet at the front building 
line. 
 (2)    The above standards apply with the following exceptions: 
  (a)    Legally created lots of record in existence prior to the effective date of this code. 
  (b)    Lots or development sites which as a process of their creation, were approved with 
sub-standard widths in accordance with provisions of this code. 
  (c)    Existing private streets may not be used for new dwelling units, except private 
streets that were created prior to March 1, 1999, including paving to fire access roads standards and 
installation of necessary utilities, and private streets allowed in the Airport Residential and Airport 
Industrial Districts. 
 
SECTION 16 – Amend Development Code § 151.580 REQUIRED MINIMUM (landscaping and outdoor 
areas) STANDARDS, subdivision (B)(1) as follows: 
 
(B)    Required landscaped area. The following landscape requirements are established for all 
developments except single family dwellings. 
(1)    A minimum of 15% of the lot area shall be landscaped; provided however, that computation of this 
minimum may include areas landscaped under subdivision (3) below. Development in the C-3 (Central 
Business District) and M-4 (Large Lot Industrial) Zoning District is are exempt from the 15% landscape 
area requirement of this section. Additional landscaping requirements in the C 4 District are described in 
§ 151.527.4(K) of this code. In the AI Airport Industrial District, only a 5% landscaping standard is 
required with the goal of "softening" the buildings and making the development "green" with plants 
where possible. The existence of the runway, taxiway, and approach open areas already provide 
generally for the 15% requirement. Developments in the AI Airport Industrial District with a public 
street frontage shall have said minimum landscaping between the front property line and the front of the 
building. 
 
SECTION 17 – Amend Development Code § 151.580 REQUIRED MINIMUM (landscaping and outdoor 
areas) STANDARDS, subdivision (B)(9) as follows: 
 
(9)    In the M-4 Zone, landscaping requirements and standards for parking and loading areas 
[subdivision (B)(3)] do not apply unless within 50 feet of a residential district. 
 
SECTION 18 – Amend Development Code § 151.586, APPLICABILITY AND EXEMPTIONS (of 
outdoor lighting), subdivision (B) as follows: 
 
(B)    Exemptions. The following uses shall be exempt from the provisions of this section: 
 (1)    Public street and airport lighting. 
 (2)    Circus, fair, carnival, or outdoor governmentally sponsored event or festival lighting. 
 (3)    Construction or emergency lighting, provided such lighting is discontinued immediately 
upon completion of the construction work or abatement of the emergency necessitating said lighting. 
 (4)    Temporary lighting. In addition to the lighting otherwise permitted in this code, a lot may 
contain temporary lighting during events as listed below: 
   (a)    Grand opening event. A grand opening is an event of up to 30 days duration within 
30 days of issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for a new or remodeled structure, or within 30 days of 
change of business or ownership. No lot may have more than one grand opening event per calendar year. 
The applicant shall notify the City in writing of the beginning and ending dates prior to the grand 
opening event. 
  (b)    Other events. A lot may have two other events per calendar year. The events may 
not be more than eight consecutive days duration, nor less than 30 days apart. 

Page 23



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 15 

 (5)    Lighting activated by motion sensor devices. 
 (6)    Non-conforming lighting in place as of September 5, 2000. Replacement of non-conforming 
lighting is subject to the requirements of §§ 151.140 through 151.149. 
 (7)    Light trespass onto industrial properties.  The lighting trespass standards of § 151.588 do 
not apply where the light trespass would be onto an industrially zoned property. 
 
SECTION 19 – Amend the table in Newberg Development Code § 151.612, PARKING SPACES 
REQUIRED, under “Industrial Types” as follows: 
 

INDUSTRIAL TYPES   

Except as specifically mentioned herein, industrial uses listed as permitted in 
the "M" Districts: M-1, M-2, M-3, and M-4 

1 for each 500 sq. ft. of 
gross floor area 

 
2. The Comprehensive Plan findings in support of this proposal, as shown in Exhibit A, are hereby 

adopted and by this reference incorporated.   
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is 30 days after the adoption date, which is: December 2, 2009. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 2nd day of  November, 2009, by the 
following votes:  AYE:   NAY:  ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:          

 
 
__________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 5th day of November, 2009. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
By and through the Planning Commission at their 10/08/2009 meeting. 

Page 24



Exhibit A  
Findings to Ordinance 2009-2720 

 
Proposal:        Amend the Newberg Development Code to include standards for a new M-4 industrial 

zoning district and a new Interim Industrial overlay zoning district (II). 
 
Summary: Staff has drafted a South Industrial Area Master Plan after an extensive public process that 
included a community visioning meeting, a community open house, and several meetings with a 
collaborative design team.  Part of the South Industrial Area Master Plan included the addition of a new 
large-lot industrial zoning district (M-4) and a new Interim Industrial (II) overlay zoning district.  The 
M-4 zoning district would be applied over the majority of the South Industrial study area upon its future 
inclusion in the city limits.  The II overlay zoning district would be used primarily in areas planned for 
future right-of-way use (i.e. the Newberg-Dundee bypass projected right-of-way).     
 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 
H. The Economy.  
Policy 2.g. – The City shall identify land that will provide for expansion of existing businesses and/or 
attract new businesses and shall reserve that land for future industrial development that is consistent 
with community needs and goals. 
 
Finding: The Newberg City Council created the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future in 2004 to 
involve citizens in future planning and to make recommendations to the City Council for future land use 
amendments.  The Ad Hoc Committee considered Newberg’s future land needs in all categories of land, 
including industrial land.  Through the process, the Committee identified a need for “94 acres of 
industrial land through 2025, and an additional 75 acres through 2040. In addition to these needs the 
Committee projects a need for 4-5 large industrial sites of at least 20 acres in size for the period 2005-
2025, and an additional 5-6 large industrial sites for the period 2026-2040”.   
 
Analysis by the City’s consultants, staff, and the Committee identified the area south of Newberg, on 
either side of Highway 219, as the area best suited to meet the City’s needs for large site industrial 
development.  Accordingly, the area was added to the proposed 2007 Urban Reserve Area.  A main 
component of future planning for large site industrial areas includes having provisions to preserve the 
large lot capability.  To accomplish that, the City started a planning process for a master plan for the 
area that would define the proposed future industrial area and include provisions protecting the future 
urbanization of the identified sites. The planning process culminated in the draft South Industrial Area 
Master Plan, which includes the proposed Development Code amendments to preserve the large lot 
capability of the future industrial area.   
 
Policy 2.h. – Where areas have been planned for large industrial sites, zoning regulations shall be 
developed and maintained to keep those sites intact.  Such sites shall not be further divided except to 
create planned industrial parks that support a specific industry. 
 
Finding:  The proposed Development Code amendments specify that “the M-4 Industrial Employment 
Sub-District is intended to create, preserve and enhance areas containing large parcels (20+ acres) 

Page 25



suitable for large industrial users and industrial planned unit developments. An approved plan for an 
industrial planned unit development is required prior to subdividing a large parcel into lots or parcels 
that are less than 20 acres”.  The M-4 zoning district policies have been crafted specifically to preserve 
large lot industrial sites.   
 
Policy 2.i. – Industrial land shall be reserved for industrial uses. 
 
Finding:  The City is better able to preserve the industrial land in the South Industrial study area by 
having the proposed Development Code amendments in place.  The City’s other industrial zones have 
minimum lot sizes of 20,000 square feet, allowing land to become parcelized and more difficult to 
attract large users.  For the City to gain a competitive advantage in the region and provide adequate jobs 
for our growing population, we must have the ability to offer large lot industrial sites in areas with good 
access and infrastructure.  The proposed Development Code amendments preserve that large lot 
industrial ability and restrict the permitted uses to those appropriate for large lot industrial areas or an 
industrial park.  
 
K. Transportation 
Policy 4.p – The City of Newberg will coordinate with ODOT on any development proposal within the 
Bypass location corridor and interchange management areas through the City’s established Site Design 
Review process.  Development planning should consider and complement the intended function of the 
bypass.  Land use decisions should consider the planned corridor location and avoid conflicts where 
feasible.   
 
Finding:  The purpose of the proposed Interim Industrial overlay zoning district (II) is to permit only 
those uses that consider and complement the intended Bypass corridor location.  The proposed II zoning 
district limits the permitted uses in the planned right-of-way acquisition area to non-structural uses and 
also decreases the site design requirements for new projects.  The City will continue to coordinate with 
ODOT on any development proposals within the Bypass corridor.  
 

Page 26



RESOLUTION NO. 2009-2872 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE SOUTH INDUSTRIAL AREA MASTER 
PLAN AS A VISION FOR THE AREA SOUTH OF NEWBERG, ON EITHER 
SIDE OF HIGHWAY 219 

 
RECITALS: 

 
1. Analysis by city staff, consultants, and the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future identified the 

area south of Newberg, on either side of Highway 219, as the area best suited to meet Newberg’s 
future needs for large site industrial development.  Accordingly, staff facilitated a public process over 
a number of months to create a master plan for the area.  Staff recently completed the draft South 
Industrial Area Master Plan, a comprehensive plan for the area that includes large lot flexibility, a 
transportation network plan, utility plan, parks and trails plan, and standards for site design and 
landscaping.   

 
2. The overall study area covers approximately 375 acres total, including right-of-way area, and 

approximately 362 acres in parcel area. Of that area, approximately 200 acres are considered to be 
“buildable” land.  A small number of parcels in the study area are located within the city limits and 
are zoned M-2 (Light Industrial).  The majority of the parcels are located outside the city limits and 
have Yamhill County zoning designations of HI (Heavy Industrial), PWS (Public Works Safety), EF-
40 (Exclusive Farm Use), HC (Highway Commercial), and AF-10 (Agriculture/Forestry).   

 
3. At their September 10, 2009 meeting, the Planning Commission passed Resolution 2009-268, 

recommending that the City Council accept the South Industrial Area Master Plan as a vision for the 
area south of Newberg, on either side of Highway 219.  The City Council held a hearing on 
November 2, 2009 to consider the request.   

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The South Industrial Area Master Plan, as shown in Exhibit “A”, is hereby accepted as a vision plan 
for the area south of Newberg, on either side of Highway 219.  Exhibit “A” is hereby accepted and by 
this reference incorporated. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: November 3, 2009. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 2nd day of November, 2009. 
 
_________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor 5th day of November, 2009. 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
By and through Planning Commission at their 09/10/2009 meeting.  

Exhibit “A” is by reference only.  A hard copy is available in the Planning and Building Department. 

 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2872, ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2720 PAGE 16 

Page 27

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/planning/south-industrial-master-plan
http://www.newbergoregon.gov/planning/south-industrial-master-plan


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 28



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2721 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: November 2, 2009 
Order           Ordinance   XX    Resolution                Motion               Information___ 
No.                  No.  2009-2721      No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Ordinance: Howard Hamilton, PW Director 

SUBJECT:    Amend the Transportation System Plan by adding 
a traffic signal at the Ore 219/Everest intersection, modifying the 
cost of the Ore 219/2nd Street Improvement, and modifying the 
Transportation System Development Charge. 

Dept.: Public Works Department 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Adopt Ordinance No. 2009-2721 amending the Transportation System Plan (TSP) by modifying the cost of 
the Ore 219/2nd Street Improvement, adding a traffic signal at the Ore 219/Everest intersection, and 
modifying the Transportation System Development Charge (SDC). 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   The City of Newberg Transportation System Plan was adopted on May 16, 
2005. The study was performed by Kittelson & Associates, Inc. and lists projected transportation 
improvement projects, costs, financing methods and anticipated project timing out to 20 years.  As a TSP 
project is designed, the engineering cost estimate is re-evaluated and adjusted to reflect any changes in the 
scope.  As engineering studies show that a new project is required, it will need to be added to the TSP. 
 
Oregon Highway 219 is a State highway under ODOT jurisdiction.  The TSP includes plans for a median at 
the Ore 219/2nd Street intersection to limit intersection movements to right-in/right-out only.  Upon ODOT 
review, they have requested a scope change to the planned Ore 219/2nd Street intersection improvement to 
include channelization.  The cost estimate has been updated from $10,000 to $65,000.  The Transportation 
System Plan will be amended to reflect this change. 
 
Engineering studies have concluded that a traffic signal will be needed at the Ore 219/Everest Road 
intersection to increase system capacity and to meet ODOT and City operational standards.  The estimated 
cost of this signal is $450,000. 
 
The updating and inclusion of these projects in the Transportation System Plan will render them eligible for 
developer credits for installation of these improvements. 

 
The Transportation System Development charge will also be amended to reflect the additional costs. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  This project is financed through SDCs.  Adjusting the SDC fee to accommodate the 
project cost update for the east and west sides of 2nd Street and the Ore 219/Everest traffic signal will keep 
the City’s SDC fees in line with project costs. The SDC cost per trip will be increased $3, from $278 to $281 
(See attachment 1). 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  The reconstruction of the intersection of Ore 219/2nd Street to a right-
in/right-out only for the east and west sides of 2nd Street will provide for a safer intersection and improve the 
flow of traffic.  Installing a traffic signal at the Ore 219/Everest intersection will allow better cross street 
access at Everest Street to meet ODOT and City operational standards, provide a safe pedestrian crossing 
and increase system capacity (See attachment 2). 
  

Page 29



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2721 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADDING A TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT THE ORE 219/EVEREST 
INTERSECTION TO THE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN, MODIFYING 
THE COST OF THE ORE 219/2ND STREET IMPROVEMENT, AND 
MODIFYING THE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The Transportation System Plan was adopted on May 16, 2005. 
 
2. Engineering studies have concluded that a traffic signal will be needed at the Ore 219/Everest Road 

intersection to increase system capacity and to meet ODOT and City operational standards. 
 
3. Cost estimates for the channelization of the Ore 219/2nd Street intersection improvement have been 

updated. 
 
4. The Transportation System Plan is amended to reflect these changes. 

 
5. The Transportation System Development charge also is amended to reflect these projects. 

 
6. Inclusion of these projects in the Transportation System Plan will render them eligible for developer 

credits for installation of these improvements. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. City of Newberg Transportation System Plan Capacity Project 5, Ore 219, shall be amended as 
follows: 
 
[Note:  Added text is shown in double underline] 
  

5. Ore 219: Rerouting of Ore 219 through Newberg. The objective of this reroute is to 
minimize through traffic, including truck traffic, in downtown Newberg.  The recommended 
route is to re-route Ore 219 to Mountainview Drive and Springbrook Road.  A special study 
should be conducted to evaluate this re-route.  The special study should analyze the traffic 
impacts, neighborhood impacts and costs of the re-route. The study should also plan for 
portions of the current Ore 219 including (1) where it would change into Springbrook, (2) 
the intersection of Wilsonville Road and the new Ore 219, (3) what the improvements would 
be at the intersection of 2nd Street with the current Ore 219 and the new Ore 219 and (4) the 
impact on businesses and services along the new Ore 219 as well as the old Ore 219. 
 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2721 PAGE 1 

Consideration was also given to reconstructing Ore 219 to minor arterial street standards 
between First Street and the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) to include sidewalks and 
bicycle lanes on each side of Ore 219.  Total length of this improvement is approximately 
1.77 miles and is estimated to cost $5.9 million. This would reconstruct the intersection of 

Page 30



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2721 PAGE 2 

Ore 219/2nd Street to a right-in/right-out only for the east and west sides of 2nd Street (by 
installation of a center median channelization). The median channelization will be designed 
in consultation with the Newberg Fire Department to allow the southbound left-turn 
movement for emergency vehicles.  Estimated cost of channelization improvements is 
$10,000 $65,000. 
 
A traffic signal is to be installed at the Ore 219/Everest intersection to allow better cross 
street access at Everest Street to meet ODOT and City operational standards and to provide a 
safe pedestrian crossing.  The estimated cost is $0.45 million. 

 
 
2. Table 7-2, Newberg Transportation System Cost Breakdown:  Capacity Projects, Project 5 
shall be amended as follows: 
 
 

TABLE 7-2 
NEWBERG TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM COST BREAKDOWN:  CAPACITY PROJECTS 

($ MILLIONS) 
Jurisdiction 
City of Newberg 

Project Improvement Cost 
Abutting 
Properties

New 
development

SDC City
Yamhill 
County 

ODOT
Anticipated 
Timing 

Ore 219 
(1st to URA) 5.9 - - - - - 5.9 M 

Ore 219/2nd  
Street 

0.01 
0.065 - 0.05 0.015 - - 0.01 S 5 

 
Ore 
219/Everest 0.45 - 0.135 0.315    S 

 
 
3. The cost per trip for Transportation System Development Charge shall be $281 per Equivalent 
Length New Daily Trip (ELNDT).   
 
 
4. This new Transportation System Development Charge applies to any building permit 
application submitted after 5:00 p.m. on December 31, 2009.  In addition, this fee schedule applies to 
any building permit issued after 5:00 p.m. on March 31, 2010.  

Page 31



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2721 PAGE 3 

 
5. This Transportation System Development Charge may be amended as provided in Resolution 
2006-2667. 
 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is 30 days after the adoption date, which is:  December 2, 2009. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 2nd day of November 2009, by  
the following votes:   AYE:      NAY:  ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:          

 
 
_________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 5th day of November 2009. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 
 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
By and through                                  Committee at       /      /200x   meeting.  Or,    X    None. 
     (committee name)    (date)      (check if applicable) 

Page 32



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2009-2721 PAGE 4 

 

Attachment 1: Transportation SDC 
Revisions for Highway 219/2nd 
Street and Highway 219/Everest 

Improvements 
                                 November 2, 2009     

Highway 219/2nd Street Improvement 
Item  Amount 

Cost Estimate     $        65,000  
New Development     $        50,000  

Remaining amount (SDC amount)      $        15,000  

     

Highway 219/Everest Street Improvement 
Item  Amount 

Cost Estimate     $     450,000  
New Development     $     135,000  

Remaining amount (SDC amount)      $     315,000  

     

Revised Transportation SDC Calculation 
Item  Amount 

Addl. for Highway 219/2nd Street     $        15,000  
Addl. For Highway 219/Everest Signal     $      315,000  

Total Additional SDC obligations      $      330,000  

     

Total Equivalent Length New Daily Trips 
(E.L.N.D.T.) per TSP Table 5             109,162  
Increased SDC cost/trip      $                 3  
Transportation SDC as of 1/01/2009     $             278  

Revised SDC/trip      $             281  

     
 
As per City of Newberg TSP Table 5,                
E.L.N.D.T. trips per Single‐Family Res. = 9.55 
 
9.55 trips x $281 per trip = 
New SDC cost for a single family residence     $    2,683.55  

 

Page 33



Page 34

Attachment 2: Map of State Highway 219 
(Cost revision for several projects on this State Route requires 
an amendment of the Transportation Development Charge.)



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDER NO. 2009-0023 PAGE 1 

 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: November 2, 2009 
Order   XX   Ordinance           Resolution                Motion               Information ___ 
No. 2009-0023 No.                       No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Order:  Barton Brierley, AICP 

SUBJECT:    Request for continuance - appeal of the 
hearings officer’s decision to deny a request for an 
existing non-conforming billboard sign to remain at 
Newberg Auto Electric located at 616 W. First Street
 

Dept.:  Planning & Building 
  
File No.: NCSIGN-09-005 
                            (if applicable) 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Continue the hearing to December 2009. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:    On September 8, 2009, the City Council held a hearing on a non-conforming 
billboard sign at 616 W. First Street.  At the conclusion of the hearing, the City Council continued the 
hearing to November 2, 2009. 
 
Staff and the applicant wish to meet to discuss the issue.  The continuance would allow additional time for 
discussions to take place. 
 

Page 35



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 36



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2873 PAGE 1 

 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: November 2, 2009 
Order          Ordinance           Resolution   XX          Motion               Information ___ 
No.                  No.                       No.  2009-2873 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Resolution: Howard Hamilton, PW Director 
Lawrence Fain, PE, Senior Engineer 

SUBJECT:    Water Connection for the Newberg 
Animal Shelter at 1409 S. Sandoz Road. 
 
 Dept.:  Public Works Department 

 
File No.:  
                            (if applicable) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2009-2873 authorizing a water service connection to 1409 Sandoz Road for the 
Newberg Animal Shelter.    
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City is in the process of constructing a new animal shelter at 1409 S. Sandoz Road (Tax Lot 3229-
00100).  This City-owned property is currently located outside the Newberg City Limits, bordered on three 
sides by the City Limits and within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). The City is actively pursuing 
annexation through a May 2010 vote.    

 
This property was served by a private well which is no longer in service.  The City of Newberg has an 
existing 18” water line just east of the property in Sandoz Road.  A new 1” water meter will be installed to 
serve the animal shelter. 
 
Municipal Code of Ordinances Title V Chapter 52.13 authorizes the Newberg City Council to approve 
“Water Service for Public Entities inside Urban Areas and Boundaries” if the water is for the “public’s use 
and enjoyment”.  Since the animal shelter will provide services for the citizens of Newberg, it meets the 
criteria and staff recommends this connection to the City water system be granted. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Adopting this resolution will not create any fiscal impact.  
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
This will not set a precedent for providing utility service as the service is for the “Public Good”.   

Page 37



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2009-2873 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN OUTSIDE CITY WATER SERVICE 
CONNECTION TO THE NEW ANIMAL SHELTER PROPERTY AT 1409 S. 
SANDOZ ROAD 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The City of Newberg owns property at 1409 S. Sandoz Road, which is currently outside of the City 

Limits but within the Urban Growth Boundary (Tax Lot 3229-00100).   
 

2. The City is in the process of constructing a new animal shelter at this location.  Additionally the 
City, in a separate action, is actively pursuing annexation through a May 2010 vote.  
 

3. Municipal Code of Ordinances Title V Chapter 52.13 authorizes the Newberg City Council to 
approve “Water Service for Public Entities inside Urban Areas and Boundaries” if the water is for 
the “public’s use and enjoyment”.  Since the animal shelter will provide services for the citizens of 
Newberg, it meets the criteria.  
  

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
The City Council hereby approves the request to provide water service to the animal shelter, located 
at 1409 S. Sandoz Road, based on the testimony presented in the public hearing on November 2, 
2009.  

 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is:  November 3, 2009. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 2nd day of November 2009. 

 
 
__________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 5th day November 2009. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 
 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
By and through                                  Committee at       /      /200x   meeting.  Or,        None. 
     (committee name)    (date)      (check if applicable) 

 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2009-2873 PAGE 1 

Page 38



G:\RECORDER\MEETING INFORMATION SHEETS\MEETING INFORMATION SHEET 2009-1102.DOC Page 1 of 1 

 NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MEETING INFORMATION 
 
DATE of Meeting: November 19, 2009 Prepared by: Norma Alley 
 
Councilors 

 
Roll 
Call 

 
MOTION 
 
Topic: Consent 
Calendar – Life 
Saving Award, 
CC Minutes 
10/5/09 

Ordinance No. 
2009-2720 
 
Topic: Amend 
Development 
Code 

Resolution No. 
2009-2872 
 
Topic: Accept 
South Industrial 
Area Master 
Plan 

Ordinance No. 
2009-2721 
 
Topic: 
Transportation 
System Plan 

Motion 
 
Topic: CBS 
Sign Appeal – 
Postpone to 
December 7, 
2009 

Resolution No. 
2009-2873 
 
Topic: Water 
Service 
Connection for 
Animal Shelter 

Motion 
 
Topic: Approve 
Closing the 
Pubic Library 
for a Library 
Conference and 
Have a Report 
Back to Council 

ANDREWS, Bob, 
Mayor X YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

BACON, Denise X YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

LARSON, Bob X YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

McKINNEY, Stephen X YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

RIERSON, Bart X YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

SHELTON, Marc X YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

WITHERSPOON, Wade X YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

ROLL CALL VOTES 

 
 

 
YES: 7 
NO: 0 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 0 

YES: 7 
NO: 0 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 0 

YES: 7 
NO: 0 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 0 

YES: 7 
NO: 0 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 0 

YES: 7 
NO: 0 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 0 

YES: 7 
NO: 0 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 0 

YES: 7 
NO: 0 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 0 

Department:   Planning Planning Public Works Planning Public Works Library 

CHANGES: (Yes/No)         

MOTION (1st/2nd):  Larson/ 
Rierson 

Larson/
Shelton

Rierson/
Larson

McKinney/
Shelton

Larson/
Rierson

Rierson/
Shelton

Rierson/ 
Larson 

 


	Council Minutes for October 5, 2009
	Ordinance No. 2009-2720 & Resolution No. 2009-2872 - South Industrial Master Plan
	Ordinance No. 2009-2721 - Hwy. 219/Everest Project
	Order No. 2009-0023 - CBS Sign Appeal
	Resolution No. 2009-2873 - Animal Shelter Water Connection
	Meeting Votes



